
From: REDACTED 
Sent: Thursday, April 15, 2021 8:26 AM 
To: REDACTED 
Subject: PLEASE READ: CHANGE IN POLICY REGARDING POOLED TRUSTS - EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY!!! 
Importance: High 
 
Hi Everyone, please share with your staff and forward appropriately. Let me 
know if you have any questions. Thank you very much. 
 
I wanted you all to be aware of this change in policy effective immediately 
regarding the use of pooled trusts for the disabled. This applies to cases pending 
not yet authorized. Do not authorize any cases with pooled trusts created by 
individuals 65 or older. The transfer of asset policy now applies to these cases. 
Please follow transfer of asset procedures on these cases. 
 
OLD POLICY: 
Individuals aged 65 or older were allowed to use pooled trusts to exclude their 
assets and / or qualify their income (used as a QIT) if they were deemed 
disabled. 
 
NEW POLICY – effective immediately: 
If the disabled individual is under 65 when the pooled trust is established, the 
assets can be excluded in the pooled trust and it can be used for income (used 
as a QIT). There is no change in policy if the trust was established when the 
individual is under age 65 and disabled. 
 
If the disabled individual is aged 65 or older when the pooled trust is established, 
the funding of the trust will now be treated as a transfer of assets. This is the 
change. It is a transfer of assets if a pooled trust is established for an individual 
aged 65 or older. Follow transfer of asset procedures. 
 
Below is headquarters explanation as well as clarifications I had asked: 
 
Circumstances required the initial change to 1640.0576.08 “Pooled trusts for the 
disabled under age 65” be made immediately.  We are working on an 
amendment to the FAC but that will take a minute.  We failed to make a 
corresponding change to “Pooled trusts for the disabled can be established for 
individuals of any age”.  A pooled trust meets and exception for trusts set up 
10/01/1993 or later only if the individual is less than 65 when the trust was 
established.   If it does not meet an exception transfer policy is applied.  Of 
course, an individual can establish a pooled trust at any age, but transfer of 
asset policy will be applied if the individual was 65 or older when trust was 
established.  We will be amending “Pooled trusts for the disabled can be 
established for individuals of any age” to clarify that transfer policy is applied if 



the individual was 65 or older when the trust was established in the next manual 
update release.  Below is our response to you more specific questions.  I am 
coping all regions a they are likely to have similar questions.   
 
 
Please clarify the following.  

• Are we now treating a pooled trust created by a disabled individual 65 or 
older as a transfer of assets?  

o Yes, it is a transfer of assets.   
 
• Is the disabled individual 65 or older still allowed to use a pooled trust as a 

qualified income trust?  
o There is no change in policy as long the individual was under 65 at 

the time the trust was established.   
 

• If a disabled individual creates a pooled trust prior to age 65, what 
happens when the disabled individual turns 65?  

o There is no change in the individual’s eligibility as long the individual 
was under 65 at the time the trust was established.   

 
• Cases that are already approved with pooled trusts for age 65 or older, 

are we to now impose a transfer of asset penalty (after the pandemic)?   
o This is currently under review.  At this point we do not anticipate 

applying transfer policy to pooled trust for cases that have already 
been approved.   We will update the regions if this changes.  

   
• Will a pooled trust for an individual 65 or older need to be reviewed by 

legal counsel?  
o Yes, the legality of all trusts, including a Pooled Trust established for 

someone age 65 or older must be evaluated by the Regions 
General Counsel.  

 
• Will a pooled trust for an individual 65 or older now need a disability 

decision?  
o There is no change in the policy, to establish a Pooled Trust the 

individual must be disabled.   
 
The specific policy manual passages pertaining to this:  



 

 



 



 



 
 

Kathy Kowalik 
Senior Human Services Program Specialist 
Department of Children and Families 
SunCoast Region Office of Economic Self-Sufficiency 
Policy and Strategic Partnerships 
(727) 373-7781 or (727) 229-7009 
 
 



We, the leaders of the SunCoast Region Office of Economic Self-Sufficiency, believe that our 
first responsibility is to serve our customers, both internal and external.  We fully believe our greatest 
asset is our staff.  We promise to empower all to reach their fullest potential by ensuring a workplace 
culture that motivates, inspires, and encourages.  We pledge to be a resource that provides everyone an 
opportunity to learn and grow.  We commit to setting the example through our own hard work, integrity, 
courage, and accountability. 
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